



# **Immersion / Open Bath / Refrigerated Circulators** Operating Instructions

Important: keep original operating manual for future use. 1.951.0800-V8

# Table of contents

2 Intended use	5
3 Description	6
4 Explanation of safety information	7
4.1 Explanation of other information	
5 Safety instructions	
a state a state of the state of	
6.3 Operating the unit	
7 Control and function elements	
7.1 Installation of the circulator	15
8 Preparations for operating the device	15
8.1 Securing the immersion circulator	15
8.2 Open bath tanks	19
9 Closed stainless steel bath tanks	20
9.1 Basic refrigeration baths	21
9.2 Bath fluids	22
9.3 Temperature control for external connected systems	24
9.4 Tubing	25
10 Commissioning	.26
10.1 Excess temperature and low level safety devices	
10.2 Filling	
10.3 Pump settings	
10.4 Switching on / Start - Stop	
10.5 Setting the desired temperature value	
10.6 Setting the timer	
10.7 ATC - Absolute Temperature Calibration (1-point calibration)	
10.8 Switch Autostart on and off	

11 Error messages / Possible causes of faults				
12 Operation of the CORIO CD via the USB interface				
13 Emj	ptying the bath tank	37		
14 Tec	hnical data	38		
14.1	Technical data for circulator	38		
14.2	Technical data for refrigeration circulation circulator	39		
14.3	Refrigerant	43		
15 Mat	terials of parts in contact with the bath fluid	45		
15.1	Circulator	45		
16 Acc	essories	45		
16.1	For external connection	45		
16.2	For open baths	45		
17 Mai	intenance, cleaning, storage	46		
17.1	Maintain the refrigeration capacity	46		
17.2	Cleaning	46		
18 Sto	rage	47		
19 Rep	air service	47		
19.1	Warranty	48		
20 Was	ste disposal	49		
20.1	Packaging	49		
20.2	Unit	49		
20.3	Refrigerant	49		
21 EC conformity				



### **Congratulations.**

You have made an excellent choice.

JULABO thanks you for the trust.

This operating manual is designed to familiarize you with the operation of our units and their possible applications. Please read the operating manual carefully.

Please call us if you have any questions about the operation of the unit or about the operating manual.



## Contact:

JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel. +49 (0) 7823 / 51-0 Fax +49 (0) 07823 / 2491 info.de@julabo.com www.julabo.com

#### The JULABO quality management system



The standards for the development, production and distribution of temperature control devices for laboratory and industry use satisfy the requirements of ISO 9001 and ISO 14001. Registration certificate No. 01 100044846.

## **Unpacking and inspection**

If the packaging is damaged or if you discover any concealed transport damage when you have unpacked the devices and the accessories, please notify the supplier in the form of a statement of damage.



# NOTICE

The operating manual

- should be kept for future use.
- must be available to operating personnel at all times.

## **1** CORIO<sup>®</sup> CD product overview

Immersion circulator	Open bath circulator	Bath circulator for temperate control	Refrigerated circulator
for bath tanks up to 50 l.	with high quality bath tanks made of transparent plastic or stainless steel.	in an internal bath or an external application.	for standard temperature control and routine tasks.

## 2 Intended use

JULABO circulators are laboratory devices which are designed for the temperature control of certain liquid media in a bath tank or with a refrigeration unit. The bath fluids recommended by JULABO must be used as tempering media.

Units with pump connections allow the tempering tasks to be carried out in an external temperature control system.

JULABO circulators are not designed for the direct temperature control of foods, semi-luxury foods and tobacco, or pharmaceutical and medical products.

- Direct temperature control means unprotected contact between the object and the tempering medium (bath fluid).
- The devices are not suitable for use in potentially explosive environments.

## **3** Description

- These circulators are operated via the splash-proof keypad. The microprocessor technology allows the setpoint to be set, displayed and saved using the temperature display LED.
- The PID temperature control automatically adjusts the heat supply to the requirements in the bath.
- ATC Absolute Temperature Calibration (1-point calibration)
- The pump function can be switched from internal to external circulation by a simple switchover button.
- Safety equipment to IEC 61010-2-010:
  - Excess temperature protector is a safety device which is independent of the control circuit whose value is set using a tool (screwdriver).
  - A float switch acts as the low level safety device. If these safety devices trip, the heater and circulating pump are completely shut down.
- Interfaces:
  - CAN bus to communicate with the refrigeration machine
  - USB connector to act as host to update and read data. USB device for remote control.



# NOTICE

It is important to follow these safety instructions to prevent personal injury and property damage. These instructions apply in addition to the safety instructions at your workstation.



It is essential that you read the user information before starting the device.



## 4 Explanation of safety information

		The operating manual contains warnings to increase safety when using the unit. The general warning sign, consisting of an equilateral triangle surrounding an exclamation sign and reproduced in various signal colors, is preceded by the signal words. "Warning of a dangerous situation". The significance of the danger is classified with a signal word. Read the instructions carefully and follow them.
		ADANGER This signal word designates a danger with a high level of risk which, if it not prevented, will result in death or serious injury.
		<b>AWARNING</b> This signal word designates a danger with a medium level of risk which, if it not prevented, may result in death or serious injury.
		<b>CAUTION</b> This signal word designates a danger with a low level of risk which, if it not prevented, may result in minor or moderate injury.
		<b>NOTICE</b> Designates a possibly harmful situation. If it is not prevented, the system or something near it may be damaged.
4.1	Explanation of	of other information
	i	TIP Your attention is drawn to something special by this.

Your attention is drawn to something special by this.

Designates user tips and other useful information.



## Dangers at second glance

Designates states which only occur after the start of an action and could have been prevented if the warning had been heeded.



### Informative note

Provides additional information.

## 5 Safety instructions

It is important to follow these safety instructions to prevent personal injury and property damage. These instructions apply in addition to standard safety practices for working places.

- It is essential that you read the user information before starting the unit.
- Use PPE (safety gloves, safety shoes, safety goggles).
- Transport the unit carefully. The interior of the unit can also be damaged by impacts or if it is dropped.
- Do not loiter under the unit during transportation and operation.
- The unit is not intended for use in potentially explosive areas.
- Please observe the specifications for the minimum space requirement when setting up the unit.
- Only operate the unit in rooms that are well-ventilated, dry and free of frost.
- Switch the unit off immediately if there is refrigerant leakage.
- Place the unit on a flat surface of non-flammable material.
- Operate the unit under an exhaust hood as much as possible.
- Do not start the unit if it is damaged or leaking.
- Compare the mains voltage and frequency with the specifications on the type plate.
- Only connect the unit to a fused mains connection via a FI circuit breaker (Ia=30 mA).
- Only connect the unit to a power socket with ground contact (PE protective earth)!
- The power supply plug serves as safe disconnecting device from the power supply network and must be freely accessible at all times.
- Check the mains cable regularly for signs of damage.
- Do not start the unit if it has a damaged power cable.
- Keep the mains cable away from hot pump connections.
- Refer to the safety sticker. Parts of the unit can be hot or cold.
- Never use the unit without bath fluid.
- Do not reach into the thermal bath fluid.
- Check the filling level of the bath fluid at regular intervals. The pump and heater must always be completely covered with bath fluid.
- Adjust over-temperature safety device below the flash point of the bath fluid.

- Consider the restricted working temperature range if you are using plastic bath tanks.
- Monitor the heat expansion of the bath oils as the bath temperature rises.
- Prevent water getting into hot bath oils.
- Use suitable tubing.
- Secure the tubing connections to prevent them sliding off.
- Do not bend the bath fluid tubing.
- Check the hoses at regular intervals for signs of material fatigue (for example cracking).
- Do not drain the bath fluid when it is hot.
- Check the temperature of the bath fluid before draining it, for example by switching on the unit briefly.
- Switch off the unit and pull the plug before moving the unit or carrying out service or repair work.
- Have all service and repair work carried out by authorized specialists only.
- Switch off the unit and disconnect it from the power supply before cleaning it.
- Drain the unit completely before transporting it.

## **6** Operator's responsibility - safety instructions

Products manufactured by JULABO GmbH ensure safe operation when installed, operated and according to common safety regulations. This section explains the potential dangers which may occur when operating the unit and specifies the most important safety measures to prevent these dangers as far as possible.

## 6.1 Requirements for the operating personnel

The operator is responsible for the qualifications of the personnel operating the unit. Ensure that the personnel who operate the unit are trained in the relevant work application by a trained person.

The operative must receive regular training about the dangers involved with their work and about action to prevent such dangers.

Ensure that everybody involved with the operation, maintenance and installation have read and understood the safety information and the operating manual. The unit may only be configured, installed, maintained and repaired by trained personnel.

If hazardous substances or substances which may become hazardous are used, the unit may only be used by a person who is completely familiar with these substances and the unit. This person must be able to assess the possible dangers in full.

## 6.2 Operating and ambient conditions for using the unit

- Avoid impacts on the housing, vibrations, damage to the operative keypad (keys and display) and heavy soiling.
- Ensure that the product is checked at regular intervals suitable for its frequency of use to ensure that it is in perfect condition.
- Check the proper condition of the mandatory warning, prohibition, and safety labels at least every 2 years.
- Ensure that the mains supply has a low impedance to prevent influencing of other units powered in the same mains.
- The unit is designed for operation in a controlled electromagnetic environment. This means that in an environment of this nature, transmission equipment such as mobile phones should not be used in the immediate vicinity.
- Other units with components which are suceptible to magnetic fields may be influenced by magnetic radiation. We recommend to maintain a minimum distance of 1 m.
- Permissible ambient temperature: max. 40 °C, min. 5 °C.
- The relative humidity should not exceed 50 % (40 °C).
- Do not store in an aggressive atmosphere. Protect from dirt.
- Protect from direct sunlight.



## 6.3 Operating the unit

The bath may be filled with flammable materials. Fire hazard!

Chemical dangers may occur, depending on the bath medium.

Refer to all warnings on the substances used (bath fluids) and in the relevant instructions (safety data sheets).

The formation of explosive mixtures is possible if the ventilation is inadequate.

Only use the units in well ventilated areas. The unit is not suitable for use in potentially explosive environments.

Special substance specifications (bath fluids) must be observed for correct operation. Caustic or corrosive bath fluids must not be used.

When using hazardous substances or substances which may be hazardous, the operator must apply the enclosed safety symbols (1 + 2a or 2b) on the control side panel where they are clearly visible:

Warning of a danger zone. Attention! Observe documentation. (Operating manual, safety data sheet)

It is essential that you read the user information prior to operation. Area of validity: EU

It is essential that you read the user information prior to operation. Area of validity: USA, NAFTA

As a result of the wide range of operating temperatures, special care and caution is essential.

There are thermal dangers: Burns, scalds, hot steam, hot parts and surfaces which may be touched.



Warning about hot surfaces. (The label is applied by JULABO)

## If external units are connected

Refer to the instructions in the manuals for the external units which you connect to the JULABO unit, particularly the safety instructions.

The connection assignment of the plugs and the technical data for the products must be observed at all times.



# 7 Control and function elements

## Front

Rear



Position	Designation					
1	Main switch					
2	Four-digit temperature display LED, menu display					
3	Control indicator - alarm					
4	Edit keys Temperature setpoint increase or decrease Press the key briefly for step-by-step changes. Press and hold the key for fast change of setpoint.					
5	OK key 1. Switch the device on/off. 2. Store value / parameter.					
6	Pump switchover, Delivery Common Common externalinternal					
7	Adjustable excess temperature safety device					
8	Control indicator - cooling					
9	Control indicator - heating					
10	USB host interface (type A)					



11	Mains connection: Integrated connector for voltage supply (mains cable included as accessory)					
12	Fuses: Miniature circuit-breaker					
13	CAN plug for connecting to the refrigeration machine.					
14	USB device interface (type B) for data transfer to the PC, for example for control tasks using the EasyTEMP software.					
15	Pump connection: Return, IN M16x1, external					
16	Pump connection: Supply, OUT M16x1, external					

**Refrigerated Circulators** 



17 Recessed handle (front, rear)

18 CAN connection cable for refrigeration machine circulator

19 CAN plug for connecting to the circulator.

20 Fuses: Miniature circuit-breakers, for refrigeration machine Resettable fuses for 600F refrigeration units (115 V, 100 V)

21	Connection cable: Voltage supply, refrigeration machine $\rightarrow$ circulator
22	Electrical connection: Integrated connector to supply power to the circulator
23	Electrical connection: Integrated connector to supply power to the refrigeration circulator
24	Drain cock and drain port (behind ventilation grille)
25	Caps (connectors for the cooling coil)

## Accessories, included in the supply





- 1x Main cable for voltage supply for the refrigeration machine (23) and circulator (11) (use one only for refrigeration circulator)
- 1x Connection cable: Refrigeration machine (22)  $\rightarrow$  Circulator (11)
- 1x CAN connection cable (18, for refrigeration machine circulator)

## 7.1 Installation of the circulator



# **ACAUTION**

## Danger of scalding due to leaks from the baths

The JULABO plastic baths are not solvent-resistant. JUALBO plastic bath tanks are for water at a working temperature range from  $+20^{\circ}$ C to  $+100^{\circ}$ C.

Do not contaminate the bath fluid with solvents.

### Things to keep in mind during the installation process:

# **A**WARNING

## Risk of tipping due to improper transportation Crushing, damage to the unit

- Use PPE (safety gloves, safety shoes, safety goggles).
- Carry the unit with 2 persons (see the Technical Data for the weight).
- Transport the unit carefully on firm, level ground. The interior of the unit can also be damaged by impacts or if it is dropped.
- Do not loiter under the unit during transportation and operation.
- The installation site should be a sufficiently large room to ensure that it does not become too hot due to the heat emission.
- The surface for the device should be flat and made of nonflammable material.
- A specific room size is prescribed for refrigerated circulators.
- At high temperatures, position the unit under an exhaust hood as much as possible due to potential vapors from the thermal bath fluid.
- Observe the safety sticker do not remove!

## 8 Preparations for operating the device

## 8.1 Securing the immersion circulator



## **A**WARNING

### Danger of electric shock.

Carefully secure the immersion circulator on the bath vessel. Poorly installed circulators can fall into the bath tank.

Have the unit checked by a service technician prior to re-use.

The heater must not be in contact with the wall or the bottom of the bath tank. Minimum distance 15 mm.

Pull the plug to disconnect the unit from the power supply. Only then take the immersion circulator out of the bath tank.

A range of accessories is available for various applications:

- Bath clamp (for securing the circulator to baths)
- Bracket (for securing the circulator to JULABO refrigeration machines)
- Pump set (for connecting external applications)
- Cooling coil (for operating close to ambient temperature)
- Stand holder with rod (for securing to a laboratory stand)

### Bath attachment clamp, order No. 9970420

- Pay special attention to the circulator's immersion depth (see Technical data) when selecting the bath.
- Place the bath on a flat surface on a pad made of non-flammable material.
- Secure the bath attachment clamp to the bath tank. The wall thickness may be up to 30 mm.
- Attach the circulator with a "click" to the bath attachment clamp.





## Stand attachment, order No. 9970022

For use with glass tanks a stand attachment with rod is available as an optional accessory.

The circulator must be mounted vertically and secured against rotation. If necessary, secure the nuts of the rod also.



## Bracket, order No. 9970177

## Installation on the circulator

- Slide the bracket over the heater and pump on to the circulator
- Push the end of the tubing on the "OUT" side on to the outlet port on the pump.
- Secure against slipping using the spring steel clamp.
- Push the end of the tubing on the "IN" side into the holding device on the pump.







 Secure the bracket housing to the base of the circulator using the four screws.

#### **Connect an external system**

- Remove the union nuts and sealing plates from the pump connectors.
- The tubing connections can be used for hoses with M16x1 connections in this state.

Or:

- Secure barbed fittings to the union nuts.
- Connect tempering hoses and secure them with tube clamps to prevent them sliding off.
- Connect the tubing for the supply and return to the pump connectors and the external consumer and secure them with tube clamps.
- Switch the pump function to external circulation.



### Pump set, order No. 9970140

### Installation on the circulator

- Push the end of the tubing on the "OUT" side on to the port on the pump.
- Secure against slipping using the spring steel clamp.
- Push the end of the tubing on the "IN" side on to the holding device on the pump.
- Secure the pump housing to the base of the circulator using the two screws.
- Attach the circulator to the bath clamp. The total immersion depth will be reduced due to the pump set.

### Connect an external system (also applies to bracket)

- Remove the union nuts and sealing plates from the pump connectors.
- The hose connectors can be used for tubing with M16x1 connections in this state.





Or:

- Secure barbed fittings to the union nuts.
- Connect tubing and secure them with tube clamps to prevent them sliding off.
- Connect the tubing for the supply and return to the pump connectors and the external consumer and secure them with tube clamps.
- Switch the pump function to external circulation.

## Cooling coil, order No. 9970100

A cooling coil is required for working at around ambient temperature (20 °C) A cooling water flow rate of 45 ml/min is generally sufficient to compensate for the intrinsic temperature.

The cooling water temperature should be at least 5 °C lower than the working temperature.

### Install the cooling coil on the pump set

- Remove the caps from the pump set.
- Insert the ends of the cooling coil through the fastening boreholes and secure them with the washers and hex nuts.
- Install the connection ports to the cooling coil.
- Slide the cooling water hoses over the connection ports and prevent slipping.

## Bracket with cooling coil, order No. 9970176 Install the cooling coil on the bracket

- Remove the caps from the bracket.
- Slide the ends of the cooling coil through the fastening boreholes.
- Secure them with the washers and hex nuts.
- Install the connection ports to the cooling coil.
- Slide the cooling water tubing over the connection ports and prevent slipping.





## 8.2 Open bath tanks

Open JULABO baths can be combined with JULABO circulators from the CORIO product series. When combined with these circulators they are designed for controlling the temperature of liquid media recommended by JULABO.



The circulators are mounted on the baths using bath attachment clamps, for example.

## Technical details for transparent bath tanks

Туре		BT5	BT9	BT19	BT27		
Order numbers		9901305	9901309	9901319	9901327		
Temperature range	°C		+20 +100				
Approx. weight	kg	1.2	1.5	2.3	2.7		
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	23 x 38 x 38	32 x 38 x 38	38 x 58 x 38	38 x 58 x 43		
Useful bath opening (WxLxD)	cm	15 x 15 x 15	23 x 15 x 15	30 x 35 x 15	30 x 35 x 20		
Filling volume, MinMax	I	3.55.0	6.0 9.0	14.0 19.0	20.0 27.0		
Material		Parts in contact with the bath fluid: Polycarbonate					
* With CORIO circulators							



### Technical details for stainless steel bath tanks

Туре		B5	B13	B17	B19
Order numbers		9903405	9903413	9903417	9903419
Temperature range	°C	+20 +150			
Approx. weight	kg	2.6	5.2	6.1	6.9
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	23x38x41	38x40x42	38x40x47	38x58x42
Useful bath opening (WxLxD)	cm	15x15x15	30x18x15	30x18x20	30x35x15
Filling volume, MinMax	Ι	3.5 5.0	9.0 13.0	13.0 17.0	14.0 19.0
Material		Parts in contact with the bath fluid: Stainless steel			

Туре		B27	B33	B39	
Order numbers		9903427	9903433	9903439	
Temperature range	°C		+20 +150		
Approx. weight	kg	8.0	17.6	14.6	
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	38x58x47	91x36x43	54x34x57	
Useful bath opening (WxLxD)	cm	30x35x20	66x32x15	33x30x30	
illing volume, MinMax	I	17.0 27.0	26.0 39.0	35.041.0	
Material		Parts in contact with the bath fluid: Stainless steel			
With CORIO circulators					

	Bath covers							
Order No.	Designation	For Baths						
9970296	Flat stainless steel bath cover	B5						
9970290	Flat stainless steel bath cover	B13, B17						
9970291	Flat stainless steel bath cover	B19, B27						
9970292	Flat stainless steel bath cover	B33						
9970293	Flat stainless steel bath cover	B39						
9970254	Lift-up stainless steel gable cover	B19, B27, BT19, BT27						
9970257	Lift-up stainless steel gable cover	B33						

# 9 Closed stainless steel bath tanks

## Intended use

JULABO BC4, BC6, BC12 and BC26 closed stainless steel baths can be combined with JULABO circulators from the CORIO product series. When combined with these circulators they are designed for controlling the temperature of JULABO recommend liquid media.



## Technical details for the sealed baths

The circulators feature the bracket which is secured to the baths.

I.

Туре		BC4	BC6	BC12	BC26	
Order No.		9905504	9905506	9905512	9905526	
Temperature range	°C		+20+150			
Approx. weight	kg	5.2	6.4	8.2	15.0	
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	23x41x42	24x44x47	33x49x47	39x62x48	
Useful bath opening (WxLxD), inner	cm	13x15x15	13x15x20	22x15x20	22x30x20	
Filling volume Min Max.	I	3.04.5	4.56.0	8.5 12.0	19.026.0	
Materials for parts in contact with the medium		Bath and drain cock: 1.4301 / 304H Bath/Bath cover seal: FKM Viton® O-ring on drain cock: FKM Viton®				

\* / With circulator

## 9.1 Basic refrigeration baths



#### Intended use

The basic refrigeration baths can be combined with JULABO circulators of the CORIO product series. In combination with these circulators, they are intended for the temperature control of liquid media (bath fluids).

### **Technical details for basic refrigeration baths**

The bracket is required for installation on the circulator.

Туре		200F	201F	300F	600F
Order No.		9461701	9461702	9461703	9461704
Temperature range	°C	-20150	-20150	-25150	-35150
Weight	kg	26,0	25,0	28,0	36,0
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	23x39x65	44x41x44	24x42x66	33x47x69
Useful bath opening (WxLxD), inner	cm	13x15x15	13x15x15	13x15x15	22x15x15
Filling volume Min Max.	I	3,04,0	3,04,0	3,0 4,0	5,07,5
Materials for parts in contact with the medium		Bath and drain valve: 1.4301 / 304H Bath/Bath cover seal: FKM Viton® O-ring on drain valve: FKM Viton®			

Туре		601F	900F	1000F	
Order No.		9461705	9461706	9461707	
Temperature range	°C	-40200	-40200	-40150	
Weight	kg	36,0	52,0	49,0	
Dimensions (WxDxH*)	cm	36x46x74	39x62x75	42x49x70	
Useful bath opening (WxLxD), inner	cm	22x15x20	26x35x20	22x15x15	
Filling volume Min Max.	I	8,010,0	21,030,0	57,5	
Materials for parts in contact with the medium		Bath and drain valve: 1.4301 / 304H Bath/Bath cover seal: FKM Viton® O-ring on drain valve: FKM Viton®			

\* / with circulator

## 9.2 Bath fluids



## 

# Danger of burns and property damage if unsuitable bath fluid is used.

- Only use thermal oils which are recommended by JULABO. The viscosity of the oil is tailored to the pump capacity.
- Refer to the safety data sheet of the bath fluid, particularly its flash point.
- Set the excess temperature protector correctly.
- Always store bath fluid so that it cannot harm the environment.

There is a selection of recommended bath fluids on the JULABO homepage at www.julabo.com. Do not exceed the maximum viscosity of 50 mm<sup>2</sup>/s when you select your product.

#### Water as the bath fluid

NOTICE

#### If you use water as the bath fluid

Recommended water mixture:

70 % soft/decalcified water and 30 % tap water for a temperature range from 5 °C to 80 °C.

The parts of the bath which come into contact with the bath fluid may be damaged and cause the failure of the device.

The water quality depends on the local conditions.

- Hard water is not suitable for temperature control tasks due to its high lime content and will produce lime deposits in the bath.
- Ferrous water can cause corrosion, even on stainless steel.
- Chloric water can cause pitting corrosion.
- Distilled and deionized water is not suitable. Their specific properties cause corrosion in the bath, even on stainless steel.
- ① Check the quality of the water you use at regular intervals.
- Evaporation and constant refilling may produce a concentration of harmful substances in the bath.
   You should therefore check the quality of the water in the bath at regular intervals.
- (i) Replace the water in the bath in full at regular intervals.

## Water bath protection products

The water bath protection product "Aqua-Stabil" is recommended to combat algae, bacteria and fungus formation.

Designation
6x 100 ml bottles
12x 100 ml bottles

# **ACAUTION**



### Unsuitable bath fluids.

JULABO cannot accept any liability for damage caused by the selection of an unsuitable **bath fluid**.

Unsuitable products include bath fluids which

- are highly viscous (much higher than recommended at the relevant working temperature).
- tend to crack.
- have a toxic, caustic or corrosive effect.



# **ACAUTION**

### Properties of indirectly temperature-controlled fluids and substances

The intended use of the units includes the indirect temperature control of fluids.

We do not know which substances these are.

Many substances are:

- inflammable, flammable or explosive
- harmful
- polluting



#### In other words: dangerous

The user bears sole responsibility for handling these substances!

Use personal protective equipment!

define a decontamination method.

The following questions should help to identify possible dangers and minimize risk.

- Are hazardous vapors or gases produced when heated?
   Does operation of the bath has to be conducted in a fume hood?
- What should you do if a dangerous substance has been spilled on or in the device?
   Obtain information on the substance before starting work and
- Are all hoses and electrical cables securely connected and routed? Keywords: Sharp edges, hot surfaces during operation, moving machine parts, etc.

## 9.3 Temperature control for external connected systems



## **ACAUTION**

Danger from the incorrect use of external connected systems.

Unsuitable materials may cause the failure of the system. Check the externally connected systems for the following:

- Compression strength.
- Corrosion resistance.
- Check the materials used for parts in contact with the medium.

The circulator is designed for the temperature control of external connected systems (temperature control system).

#### Connect an external system

Remove the union nuts and sealing plates from the pump connectors.

The tube connectors can be used for tubing with M16x1 (internal) connections in this state.

Tighten the connections with a maximum torque of 3 Nm, holding the nuts (a.f. 17 mm) as you do so.







## Second method

Secure barbed fittings to the union nuts. Tighten the connections with a maximum torque of 3 Nm, holding the nuts (a.f. 17 mm) as you do so.

Connect tubing and secure them with tube clamps to prevent them sliding off.

Connect the tubing for the supply and return to the pump connectors and the external consumer and secure them with tube clamps.

Switch the pump function to external circulation.



## 9.4 Tubing



# **ACAUTION**

## Danger of injury from defective tubing.

The bath fluid tubing is a potential source of danger at high working temperatures. Large volumes of hot bath fluids can be pumped out of a damaged tubing in a short period of time.

### **Possible consequences:**

- Skin burns
- Breathing problems due to the hot atmosphere

#### Danger from unsealed pump connections.

- If the pump connections are not sealed, bath fluid may be pumped out without any control.
- Set the lever on the pump to internal circulation.
- Unused pump connections must always be sealed with sealing screws.

### Danger from the incorrect use of tubing.

- The tubing must be suitable for the pressure and temperature range which results from operation and for the bath fluid (for example silicon oil must not be used with silicon tubings).
- Secure the tubing connections to prevent them sliding off. Use tube clamps.
- Do not kink the tubing. This will reduce throughput and may cause the maximum pressure in the system to be exceeded (glass reactor). The tube length should therefore be kept at a reasonable level.





Prepare a maintenance plan. Check tubing at regular intervals, at least once per year, for signs of material fatigue (for example cracking) The tubing must be replaced at regular intervals if they are in constant use.

We recommend that you select suitable tubing on the JULABO homepage.

## 10 Commissioning



## **A**WARNING

•

### Danger from mains voltage.

Risk of injury from electric power.

- Compare the mains voltage and frequency with the details on the model plate.
- Connect the device only to a safe power supply via FI-circuit breaker (IA = 30 mA).
- The device may only be connected to power outlets with a ground contact (PE – protective earth).
- The mains plug serves as a safe disconnecting device from the power supply network and must be freely accessible at all times.
- Do not start the device if it has a damaged mains cable.
- Check the mains cable regularly for signs of damage.
- We disclaim all liability for damage caused by incorrect line voltages!

#### Commissioning the circulator with a refrigeration machine

Connect the circulator and refrigeration machine using the mains lead. Connect them to the voltage supply using the fitted plug on the refrigeration machine and the mains lead. Connect the CAN jacks on both devices with the CAN connection cable to transfer data.





# **A**CAUTION

**Cold or hot device surfaces** 

#### **Frostbit or burns**

# What should be observed when operating the JULABO temperature control unit?

- Unit parts may develop high surface temperatures. A hot surface means it has a temperature of 60 °C / 140 °F or more.
- Let the device cool down to an uncritical safe temperature.
- Use safety gloves.

## **10.1 Excess temperature and low level safety devices**

The safety devices are not affected by the control circuit. When they trip all actors are permanently shut down.

The alarm is displayed optically and acoustics with a continuous signal tone and the reason for the alarm is shown on the display as a number.



# **A**WARNING

### Danger from damaged safety devices

Possible serious consequences for personnel and working areas.

Check the safety devices at least twice per year.

## Excess temperature protector, IEC 61010-2-010

Turn the adjustable excess temperature protector to the cut-out point (actual temperature) using a screwdriver. The actors will be shut down on all poles, the circulator will show error message E 14, the "Alarm" control display will be lit and a continuous signal tone will sound.

## Low level safety device, IEC 61010-2-010

The float switch in this device must be moved manually in the bath to test the function, for example using a screwdriver.

Push down the float until its reaches the mechanical stop.

The actors will be shut down on all poles, the circulator will show error message E 01, the "Alarm" control display will be lit and a continuous signal tone will sound.

## 10.2 Filling



## **ACAUTION**

### **Basic dangers.**

The volume of oil used as bath fluid changes with the temperature. Starting from the volume when the bath is filled (room temperature) it may increase or decrease during operation.

The bath temperature rises - hot bath fluid can overflow. The bath temperature falls - the low level alarm will stop the tempering process.

Monitor the level until it reaches working temperature.



### Filling process

- Ensure that the drain valve is closed. Turn the knurled screw.
- Carefully insert bath fluid never allow bath fluid to get inside the circulator.
- Do not exceed the maximum bath capacity (see Technical Data).
- 1 The bath temperature rises hot bath fluid can overflow.
- 2 The bath temperature falls the low level alarm will stop the tempering process.
- Monitor the level until it reaches working temperature.

## 10.3 Pump settings



To meet all the requirements for internal and/or external temperature control tasks, the direction of the pump flow is continuously adjustable.

For this purpose the lever below the head of the circulator can be adjusted from:



Max. internal pump flow to...



Max. external pump flow.

## **ACAUTION**

## Risk of burns due to hot bath fluid

When adjusting the pump flow, make sure that no bath fluid is spilled from the bath opening due to circulation. For internal temperature control (external pump connections closed), the adjusting lever is to be set first to reduced internal circulation (2) before the circulator is started. After starting the circulator, circulation can be optimized through adjustment.



## 10.4 Switching on / Start - Stop







When pressing the keys, it is advisable to hold the circulator head with one hand.

#### Switching on

- The device is switched on by pressing the power switch (1).
- The unit performs a self-test. All the segments of the four digit LED temperature display will illuminate. The "OFF" signal then indicates that the unit is ready to operate.

#### Start

 Press OK for approx. 1 second. The current bath temperature will be shown on LED temperature display.

#### Stop

- Press **OK** for approx. 1 second.
- Switch off the unit with the circulator's mains power switch.
- ① In combination with the cold bath base units 600F, 601F, 900F, 1000F, the flashing control indicator "Cooling" after temperature regulation is complete indicates that a valve is still open. Only turn off the main power switch after this indicator has stopped flashing.

## 10.5 Setting the desired temperature value

Factory setting: 10 °C	The temperature can be set when the device has been started or stopped.  The set value is saved so that it will be retained even after a power outage.	
	1.	Press the edit key $\mathbf{N}$ or $\mathbf{\Lambda}$ briefly to switch from displaying the actual value to the desired value. The digits before the decimal point flash.
Example:	2.	Change the value: Press the ▲ key to set a higher value. Press the ▲ key to set a lower value. Press the key briefly for single steps, press and hold the key to adjust the values quickly.
Changing the desired value from 33.00 to 45.50	3.	Save the set value as the desired value by pressing the <b>OK</b> key. The digits after the decimal point flash.



## 10.6 Setting the timer

## Timer displays

Timer set to 15 minutes.

28 seconds until the timer ends



4. Change the value:

Press the **A** key to set a higher value.

Press the **V** key to set a lower value.

Press the key briefly for single steps, press and hold the key to adjust the values quickly.

5. Save the set value as the desired value by pressing the **OK** key.

The new desired value will flash three times.

The timer keeps the set value for a defined period of time. The device then stops ( $\square F F$ ). The timer settings can be set when the device has been started or stopped.

① The set value is saved so that it will be retained even after a power outage.

## Setting the timer

- 1.  $\bigvee$  and simultaneously press  $\bigvee E'$  and  $\square$  appear on the display.
- Changing the timer value (in minutes): Press the ▲ key to set a higher value. Press the ▼ key to set a lower value. Press the key briefly for single steps, press and hold the key to adjust the values quickly.
- Save the set value as the desired value by pressing the OK key.

The new timer value will flash three times.

The decimal point flashes until the desired value ( $\pm 0.1$  K) is reached. After the desired value is reached, the timer starts and the display alternates between the actual temperature (for 3 sec.) and the remaining time (for 2 seconds). The remaining time < 1 min is displayed in seconds. Until the desired value is reached, it can still be changed. The timer remains active and will start when the new desired value is reached. If the desired value is changed while the timer is running, the timer will be deactivated.

After the set time elapses, a beep sounds twice and the device goes into the  $\square F F$  state.

## Stopping the timer

• Press the **OK** key for about 1 sec. - **DF** F.

## 10.7 ATC - Absolute Temperature Calibration (1-point calibration)

1-point calibration:

The temperature sensor can be calibrated at any value in the working temperature range.

Place a calibrated thermometer (resolution: 0.01°C) in the center of the bath to measure the actual bath temperature.

- 1st Switch on the circulator at its mains switch
- 2nd Set the required calibration value as described in "Adjusting temperature setpoint" (example: 50.0°C).
- 3rd Start the unit: Press the **OK** key.
- 4th The bath will be heated to 50.0°C. When the setpoint is reached, allow the bath temperature to settle for approx. 3 minutes.
- 5th Start the calibration: Press the "Service" and the **№** key together until the comma in the display starts to flash.
- 6th Read the bath temperature value on the calibrated thermometer and round it up or down and set it. (Example: 48.87 °C to 48.9 °C)
- 7. Press the **OK** key to confirm.
- 7th The circulator will confirm the process by displaying "CAL".
- 48.9 E A L

 $S \square \square$ 

500

Service



- Frr

## NOTICE

If the value is outside a window of  $\pm$ 5°C, its entry will be ignored! Error message: **Err** = Error

## 10.8 Switch Autostart on and off

The AUTOSTART function allows the device to be started as soon as the main switch is pressure, which in turn allows you to use a timer.





OK, 上

## **A**WARNING

## **Uncontrolled device start**

If circulators are started using "AUTOSTART", ensure that even if it is started accidentally, for example after a power outage, it does not pose a danger to personnel or equipment.

- Ensure that the circulator's safety equipment is set correctly.
- 1. Press and hold the **OK** key and
- 2. switch on the circulator using the main switch.

The switchover process is shown briefly on the temperature display LED.

Autostart on

Autostart off

# 11 Error messages / Possible causes of faults

	<b>▲</b> +	The following faults which trigger alarms result in the units's heater and circulating pump being shut down permanently. The alarm indicator I ights up and a continuous signal tone will sound. The reason for the alarm or warning will be shown on the LED temperature display in coded form. Warnings are displayed alternately with the actual value on the display.
×		The signal tone can be muted by pressing the OK key.
Ε	01	The device is being operated with no or too little bath fluid or the level is below the minimum level. Top up the bath fluid.
		A hose has burst (bath fluid level too low because it has been pumped out). Replace the hose and top up the bath fluid.
Ε	05	The cable for the working temperature sensor has been interrupted or short-circuited.
Ε	06	Defect of the working or excess temperature sensor. The working and excess temperature sensors report a temperature difference of more than 20 K.



E	14	The cut-out value of the excessive temperature protector is below the defined working temperature . Set the safety temperature to a higher value.
E	33	The cable for the overtemperature safety sensor has been broken or short-circuited.
Ε	60	Internal error. Contact JULABO Service Department.
E	61	Connection error between Corio CD and refrigeration unit The data communication between the Corio CD and the refrigeration unit is permanently monitored. If communication cannot be established (e.g. by a defective connection cable), the error message "E 61" is generated. By pressing the "OK" key, the alarm is acknowledged. The Corio CD continues operating purely as heating circulator until the next interruption of the power supply (power-off). When the fault has been repaired, the Corio CD controls the refrigeration unit according to the settings in the menu (Off, Auto, On) after the next power-on.
E	63	Internal error. Contact JULABO Service Department.
E	סר	Internal error. Contact JULABO Service Department.
Ε	72	Internal error. Contact JULABO Service Department.
Ε	80	Warning: Internal error. Contact JULABO Service Department.
Ε	82	Warning: Update error (incorrect hex file). Contact JULABO Service Department.
E	83	Warning: Excessive power consumption via USB interface (<300 mA).
E E	108 116	The self-locking alarm is still active. Switch off the device at the main switch. Wait for approx. 4 seconds and then switch it on again.
E	8	The internal AD converter is defective.

	Alarms and warnings for refrigeration machines 200F, 201F, 300F
E431	Maximum compressor current exceeded.
E 143 I	Warning: No compressor current detected.

	Alarms and warnings for refrigeration machine 600F
E40 I	Temperature sensor evaporator outlet defective (short circuit).
E402	Temperature sensor evaporator outlet defective (break).
E4   3	Evaporation pressure sensor defective (short circuit).
E4 14	Evaporation pressure sensor defective (break).
E4   7	Condensation pressure sensor defective (short circuit).
E4 18	Condensation pressure sensor defective (break).
E425	Error in refrigeration system.
E426	Error in refrigeration system.
E427	Error in refrigeration system.
E 1427	Warning: Error in refrigeration system
E431	Maximum compressor current exceeded.
E432	Error in refrigeration system.
ЕЧЭЭ	Error in refrigeration system.
E 143 I	Warning: No compressor current detected.





### To cancel the alarm state

- 1. Switch off the device at the main switch.
- 2. Eliminate the cause of the alarm.
- 3. Eliminate the cause of the alarm or wait for approx. 4 seconds, depending on error type.
- 4. Switch on the device again at the mains power switch.
- 5. If the error occurs again, a remote diagnostic is to be made.

#### Faults which are not displayed:

Circulating pump motor overload protection.

The circulating pump motor is protected from overloads. After a cooling phase the motor will restart automatically.

If necessary the unit should be inspected by a JULABO service technician.

#### JULABO Technical Service

Phone:	+49 (0) 07823 / 5166
Fax:	+49 (0) 07823 / 5199
Email:	service.de@julabo.com

## 12 Operation of the CORIO CD via the USB interface

- PC and CORIO CD are switched on.
- Connect the CORIO CD and PC with the USB cable.

The CORIO CD reports to the PC after the installation of the driver with the identifier "STMicroelectronics virtual COM port" COM port in Device Manager

For comfortable operation, you can use the JULABO software EasyTemp. There are also interface commands to the direct query available:

Input	Function
STATUS	current operating status
VERSION	device name + voltage variant + software version
IN_SP_00	Setpoint query
IN_PV_00	current value query
IN_PV_01	Variable query
IN_PV_03	Safety sensor query
IN_PV_04	Safety potentiometer query



IN_MODE_05	Start/Stopp query
OUT_SP_00	Setpoint input
OUT_SP_01	Send setpoint
OUT_MODE_05	Start/Stop device 1/0

#### **Remote operation**

The device can be controlled remotely via the USB interface. To do this, connect the unit to a PC via the interface.

When remote operation is active (press and hold down  $\mathbb{N}$  and  $\mathbb{A}$  simultaneously for approximately 3 seconds) the display alternates between the current bath temperature or "OFF" and the message "-r-". Switching remote operation on and off is confirmed with a short " $_{C}$   $\square_{\Gamma}$ " or " $_{C}$   $\square_{\Gamma}F$ ".

### Data logging

Certain characteristic parameters can be read. To do this:

- 1. Attach the USB flash drive.
- Start data logging with the ▲ and ▲ key combination. Hold the keys down until the activation is indicated by L□E 1. Data logging is also indicated by a flashing dot after the last decimal place (2日33.). Every record is automatically provided with a log file name and stored in a separate txt file.
- 3. The same key combination can be used to stop data logging. Deactivation is indicated by  $L \square \square \square$ .

### Cold Mode:

You can set the refrigeration unit operating mode. Here you can switch between automatic operation, refrigeration unit always on, and refrigeration always off.

To do this, press the  $\mathbf{N}$  button while switching on the power switch. The mode changes one position each time the power switch is switched on and the  $\mathbf{N}$  button pressed. The display shows:

- " $[\Box \Box ]$ "  $\rightarrow \mathbb{R}e$  frigeration unit always on,

where the required cooling capacity to maintain the bath temperature is available.

- " $\Pi \sqcup F \square$ "  $\rightarrow$   $\square$ utomatic operation (factory setting)

where cooling capacity is available if needed

- " $\Box F F$ "  $\rightarrow$  refrigeration unit always off,

where no cooling capacity is required.
## Reading black box data:

The black box is integrated into the controller and stores all relevant data from the last 20 minutes. In addition, persisting alarms and warnings are logged to an alarm memory. This data can be read.

Installation is easy and is carried out step by step. Please follow the instructions.

To do this, insert the USB flash drive into the thermostat interface and press the "SERVICE button" +  $\Box$ K. The display then shows " -  $\Box$  = ".

# **13** Emptying the bath tank



# 

Danger of scalds from hot bath fluid or hot drain tap. Please note the following when draining the bath fluid:

- Hot bath fluid: Do not drain the bath fluid when it is hot.
- Environmental Hazard: Refer to all regulations for disposing of bath fluids.





## Emptying

- Switch off the unit and pull the plug or disconnect the connection to the power supply on all poles.
  For baths without a drain tap, remove the circulator from the bath tank.
- Small bath tanks do not have a drain tap and can be carried for drainging. The temperature of the bath fluid should not exceed 50°C.

## **Enclosed baths and refrigeration machines**

- Connect a suitable hose to the drain port (∅ 12 mm external).
- Route the hose to a vessel or drain.
- Open the drain valve with the knurled screw.
- ① To reduce the weight, the bath can be partly emptied using a hose pump (transfer pump).
- (i) Do not empty the bath in temperatures of  $\leq 0^{\circ}$ C since the drain tap may freeze.

# 14 Technical data

# 14.1 Technical data for circulator

				74			
Circulator			CORIO				
Working temperature range	°C	20 150					
Temperature stability	°C		±0.0				
Temperature setting			Digi	tal			
Temperature display			LEI	)			
Resolution	°C		0.0				
ATC - Absolute Temperature Calibration			1-ро	int			
Temperature control			PID	1			
Heating capacity (at 230 V)	kW		2.0	)			
Heating capacity (at 115 V)	kW		1.0	)			
Heating capacity (at 100 V)	kW		0.8	3			
Circulating pump:		100 V / 50-60 Hz	115 V / 60 Hz	230 V / 50 Hz	230 V / 60 Hz		
Delivery rate at 0 bar	L/min	15-16	16	15	17		
Pressure at 0 liters	bar	0.27-0.35	0.33	0.35	0.43		
Max. viscosity	cSt	50					
Dimensions (WxDxH) without bracket	cm	13.2 x 16.0 x 18.4					
Useful immersion depth	cm		16.	6			
Weight	kg		2.6	5			
Ambient temperature range	°C		5	40			
Operating temperature range	°C		-40	150			
Mains power connection	V / Hz		$230\pm10$	% / 50			
Power consumption (230 V)	А		10	1			
For CH and GB model (at 230 V)	А		10				
Mains power connection	V / Hz		230 ±10	% / 60			
Power consumption (at 230 V)	А		10				
Mains power connection	V / Hz	115 ±10 % / 60					
Power consumption (at 115 V)	А		10	)			
Mains power connection	V / Hz	100 ±10 % / 50-60					
Power consumption (at 100 V)	А	9					
Classification to DIN 12876-1		III (FL)					

# **14.2 Technical data for refrigeration circulation circulator**

<b>CORIO</b> refrigeration circulator		COF	RIO CD-2	200F	COR	10 CD-2	201F	
Working temperature range	°C	-20 150			-20 150			
Temperature stability	°C			±0.	03			
Temperature display				LE	D			
Setting/Display resolution	°C			0.0	)1			
ATC – Absolute Temperature				1-ро	oint			
Temperature control				PID	)1			
Refrigeration capacity	°C	+20	0	-20	+20	0	-20	
(Medium ethanol)	kW	0.22	0.17	0.06	0.20	0.16	0.06	
Refrigerant			•	R13	4a		-	
Overall dimensions (HxDxH)	cm	23	3 x 39 x 6	5	44	x 41 x 4	4	
Useful bath opening (WxD)	cm		13 x 15		13 x 15			
Bath depth	cm		15		15			
Filling volume, fromto	Liters	3	3.0 4.0	1	3.0 4.0			
Weight, with circulator	kg		26.0			25.0		
Ambient temperature range	°C			5	40			
Operating temperature range	°C			-50	200			
Mains connection	V / Hz		23	0 ±10%	/ 50 / 60	)		
Power consumption (at 230 V)	А		1	Vom. 2 /	Tot. 16			
For CH model (at 230 V)	А		1	Vom. 2 /	Tot. 10			
For GB model (at 230 V)	A		1	Vom. 2 /	Tot. 13			
Mains connection	V / Hz			230 ±10	% / 60			
Power consumption (at 230 V)	А	Nom. 2 / Tot. 16						
Mains connection	V / Hz	115 ±10% / 60						
Power consumption (at 115 V)	А	Nom	Nom. 4 / Tot. 12 Nom. 3 / Tot. 12			12		
Mains connection	V / Hz	100 -10 %; +5 % /50						
D		100 ± 10 % / 60 Nom. 4 / Tot. 15						
Power consumption (at 100 V)	A	Non. 47 10. 15						

<b>Refrigeration circulator</b>		COR	RIO CD-	300F	COR	10 CD-6	500F	
Working temperature range	°C	-25 150			-35 150			
Temperature stability	°C	±0.03						
Temperature display				LEI	)			
Resolution	°C			0.0	1			
ATC – Absolute Temperature Calibration				1-ро	int			
Temperature control				PID	1			
Refrigeration capacity	°C	+20	0	-20	+20	0	-20	
(Medium ethanol)	kW	0.31	0.28	0.11	0.60	0.53	0.22	
Refrigerant			R134a		R404A, R452A*			
Dimensions (WxDxH)	cm	24	1 x 42 x 6	56	33 x 47 x 69			
Useful bath opening (WxD)	cm		13 x 15		22 x 15			
Bath depth	cm		15		15			
Filling volume, fromto	Liters	3	3.0 4.0	)	5.0 7.5			
Weight, with circulator	kg		28.0		36.0			
Ambient temperature range	°C	5 40			5 40			
Operating temperature range	°C			-50	200			
Mains connection	V / Hz	230	±10 % /	50	230 ±10 % / 50			
Power consumption (at 230 V)	А	Non	n. 2 / Tot	. 16	Nom. 4 / Tot. 16			
For CH model (at 230 V)	А	Non	n. 2 / Tot	. 10	Nom	. 4 / Tot.	. 10	
For GB model (at 230 V)	А	Non	n. 2 / Tot	. 13	Nom	Nom. 4 / Tot. 13		
Mains connection	V / Hz	208-2	30 ±10 %	% / 60	208-23	80 ±10 %	6 / 60	
Power consumpt. (208-230 V)	А	Nom. 2 / Tot. 16			Nom	. 4 / Tot.	. 16	
Mains connection	V / Hz	115 ±10% / 60			115	±10% /	60	
Power consumption (at 115 V)	А	Nom. 4 / Tot. 12 Nom. 7 / T			. 7 / Tot.	. 12		
Mains connection	V / Hz	100 ±10% /50-60 100 -10%; +5% 100 ±10% / 6			60			
Power consumption (at 100 V)	А	Non	n. 5 / Tot	. 15	Nom.	11 / Tot	t. 15	

 $^{\ast}$  at 230 V / 50 Hz and 208-230 V / 60 Hz

<b>Refrigeration circulator</b>		COF	RIO CD-	601F	COF	RIO CD-	900F
Working temperature range	°C	-40 150			-40 150		
Temperature stability	°C	±0.03					
Temperature display				LE	D		
Resolution	°C			0.0	D1		
ATC – Absolute Temperat. Calibration				1-p	oint		
Temperature control				PII	D1		
Refrigeration capacity	°C	20	0	-10	20	0	-10
(Medium ethanol)	kW	0.6	0.5	0.35	0.9	0.8	0.55
Refrigeration capacity	°C	-20	-30	-40	-20	-30	-40
(Medium ethanol)	kW	0.2	0.07	0	0.35	0.15	0.02
Refrigerant			R452a			R452a	
Dimensions (WxDxH)	cm	36	5 x 46 x	74	39	) x 62 x 7	75
Useful bath opening (WxD)	cm	2	2.0 x 15	.0	26.0 x 35.0		
Bath depth	cm		20.0		20.0		
Filling volume, fromto	Liter	8	.0 10.	0	21.0 30.0		
Weight, with circulator	kg		36.0		52.0		
Ambient temperature range	°C			5	. 40		
Operating temperature range	°C	-!	50 20	0	-50 200		
Mains connection	V Hz	200-2	30 -10 % 50/60	; 5 %	230 -10 %; 5 % 50		
Power consumption (at 230 V)	A	Nom	n. 3-4 / T	ot. 16	Nom. 5 / Tot. 16		
For CH model (at 230 V)	А	Nor	n. 4 / To	t. 10	Nom. 5 / Tot. 10		
For GB model (at 230 V)		Nom	n. 3-4 / T	ot. 13	Nom. 5 / Tot. 13		
Mains connection	V Hz		-		200 -5 %; 10 % 50 / 60		
Power consumpt. (200 V)	A		-			n. 5 / Tot	
Mains connection	V Hz	230 -10 %; 5 % 230 60			230 -10 %; 5 % 60		
Power consumpt. (208- 230 V)	А	Nom. 4 / Tot. 16			Non	n. 5 / Tot	. 16
Mains connection	V/ Hz	115 ±10 % / 60			115	±10 %	/ 60
Power consumption (at 115 V)	А	Nom. 7 / Tot. 12 Nor			Nom	. 10 / To	t. 16
Mains connection	V/ Hz	100 -10 %; +5 %/ 50/60					
Power consumption (at 100 V)	A	Nom. 11 / Tot. 15 -			-		

All measurements have been carried out at: rated voltage and frequency ambient temperature: 20 °C Technical changes without prior notification reserved.

Refrigeration circulator	°C	<b>CD-1000F</b> -40 150							
Working temperature range	°C	+0.03							
Temperature stability	°ر								
Temperature display					LE	-			
Resolution	°C				0.0	-			
ATC – Absolute Temperat. Calibration					1-рс				
Temperature control					PIC	-			
Refrigeration capacity	°C	20	10	0	-10	-20	-30	-40	-50
(Medium ethanol)	kW	1	0.95	0.9	0.73	0.5	0.25	0.1	0
Refrigerant					R45	2A			
Dimensions (WxDxH)	cm				42 x 49	9 x 70			
Useful bath opening (WxD)	cm				22 x	15			
Bath depth	cm	15							
Filling volume, fromto	Liter	5 7.5							
Weight, with circulator	kg	51.5							
Ambient temperature range	°C	5 40							
Mains connection 230 V/50 Hz	V/ Hz			2	30 ±10	% / 5	0		
Power consumption (at 230 V)	А			Ν	om. 6 /	Tot. 1	6		
For CH model (at 230 V)	А			Ν	om. 6 /	Tot. 1	0		
For GB model (at 230 V)	А			Ν	om. 6 /	Tot. 1	3		
Mains connection 230 V/60 Hz	V/ Hz	230 ±10 % / 60							
Power consumption (at 230 V)	Α	Nom. 6 / Tot. 16							
Mains connection 115 V/60 Hz	V/ Hz	115 ±10 % / 60							
Stromaufnahme (at 115 V)	А	Nom. 9 / Tot. 16							
Mains connection 200 V/ 50-60 Hz	V/ Hz	200 -5 %, +10 % / 50/60							
Power consumption (at 200 V)	А	Nom. 6 / Tot. 16							

All measurements have been carried out at: rated voltage and frequency ambient temperature: 20 °C Technical changes without prior notification reserved.

Safety precautions to IEC 61010-2	2-010:
Excess temperature protection, a	djustable 0°C 170°C
Low level protection	Float switch
Classification to DIN 12876-1	Class III
Alarm	Optical and audible (permanent)

Ambient conditions to IEC 61010-1:

- For indoor use only.
- Altitude up to 200 m normal zero.
- Ambient temperature: +5 ... +40 °C

**EMC** requirements

The device is an ISM device of group 1 per CISPR 11 (uses HF for internal purposes) and is classified in class A (industrial and commercial sector).

## NOTICE

- Devices of class A are intended for the use in an industrial electromagnetic environment.
- When operating in other electromagnetic environments, their electromagnetic compatibility may be impacted.

Humidity

- Maximum relative humidity 80%, for temperatures up to 31°C,
- Linear decrease to 50% relative humidity at a temperature of 40°C
- Max. voltage fluctuation of ±10% are permissible.

Protection class to EN 60 529:	IP 21
The device complies with	Safety class I
Overvoltage category	II
Pollution degree	2

## 14.3 Refrigerant

In the event of an error in the refrigeration system (leak) a certain room size is specified in standard EN 378 for each kg of refrigerant.

The refrigerant used and the quantity are stated on the type plate.

Refrigerant used in relation to JULABO	Limit value for 1 m³ volume [kg]
R23	0.68
R134a	0.25

Refrigerant used in relation to JULABO	Limit value for 1 m³ volume [kg]
R404A	0.52
R507	0.53
R508B	0.2
R452A	0.423
Propane (R290)	0.008
Ethylene (R1150)	0.007

### Information about the used refrigerants

The **Regulation (EU) No. 517/2014 on fluorinated greenhouse gases** applies to all systems which contain fluorinated refrigerants and replaces (EC) 842/2006.

The aim of the Regulation is to protect the environment by reducing emissions of fluorinated greenhouse gases.

Among other things it regulates the emission limits, use and recovery of these substances. It also contains requirements for operators of systems which require / contain these substances to function.

Under Regulation 517/2014, the operator of a system of this nature has the following duties:

- The operator must ensure that the equipment is checked at regular intervals for leaks.
- These intervals depend on the CO<sub>2</sub> equivalent of the system. This is calculated from the refrigerant fill volume and type of refrigerant. The CO<sub>2</sub> equivalent of your system is shown on the model plate.
- The operator undertakes to have maintenance, repair, service, recovery and recycling work carried out by certified personnel who have been authorized by JULABO.
- All such work must be documented. The operator must keep records and archive them for at least five years. The records must be submitted to the relevant authority on request.

Refer to the text of the Regulation for further information.

# 15 Materials of parts in contact with the bath fluid

## **15.1 Circulator**

Description	Material
Motor	1.4301
Pump	PPS
Heater	1.4404 / 316L
Sensor 2xPt 100 metal, fitted	1.4571
Sensor connection	1.4301
Float	1.4401
Float pipe	1.4571
Springband hose clamp	1.1248, coated
Tubing	FPM / FKM

## **16 Accessories**

A wide selection of accessories is available for the following products at <u>www.julabo.com</u> for optimum adaption to your temperature control task.

## 16.1 For external connection

- Bath fluids
- Tubing
- Shut-off valve
- Barbed fittings
- Adapters

## 16.2 For open baths

Temperature applications for samples, preparation of samples for serology and clinical chemistry, analysis, etc.

- Test tube racks
- Immersion-height adjustable platforms

# 17 Maintenance, cleaning, storage



# 

### Danger of injury during maintenance, repair and transport Danger from mains voltage.

- Have all service and repair work carried out by authorized specialists only.
- Switch off the unit and pull the plug,
  - before starting any cleaning work,
  - before carrying out any service or repair work or
  - before moving the unit.
- Empty the unit completely before moving it.
- Transport the unit carefully.

## **17.1** Maintain the refrigeration capacity.



The device is designed for continuous operation in normal conditions. No regular maintenance work is required.

The condenser on the front should be cleaned from time to time to maintain the full refrigeration capacity.

- 1. Switch off the device.
- 2. Pull the plug.
- 3. Let the unit cool down to room temperature.
- 4. Remove the ventilation grille.
- 5. Vacuum the dirt on the condenser.

## 17.2 Cleaning

Use low surface tension water (for example soap suds) to clean the bath and the functional parts of the circulator which are immersed in it. Clean the exterior device with a cloth and low surface tension water.

The circulator is designed for continuous use in normal conditions. No regular maintenance work is required.

The bath tank should only be filled with suitable bath fluid. In the event of contamination, the bath fluid must be replaced from time to time.

### **Cleaning open bath tanks**

# NOTICE

- Leaking bath tanks due to unsuitable cleaning products.
- These bath tanks are not resistant to solvents and pure alcohol. Incorrect cleaning products will make the surface of the bath go cloudy and will dissolve the adhesive. Plastic baths will therefore start to leak.
- Clean bath tanks with wet products never rub them dry. The cloths or sponges you use should not be contaminated (with scouring particles or dust).



- A good, essentially smear-free cleaning effect can be achieved using a microfiber cloth moistened with water.
- Use warm water with a few drops of washing-up liquid and a soft cloth to clean the bath.
- If it has heavier soiling, particularly if it is greasy, benzol-free pure benzene (washing benzene, light benzene) can be used for cleaning.

## 18 Storage

Units which are not to be reused must be stored in a dry, place, protected from dust and frost, after cleaning. The system components must be fully emptied and carefully dried, for example using compressed air. Seal the connectors.

## **19 Repair service**

Before asking for a service technician or returning a JULABO unit for repair, please contact our Technical Service Department.

JULABO Technical Service

Phone:	+49 7823 / 51-66
Fax:	+49 7823 / 51-99
Email:	service.de@julabo.com

If you return a unit to JULABO:

- Clean the unit to avoid any harm to the service personnel.
- It is essential that you enclose a short fault description.
- Before returning the device, please complete an online return form at <a href="http://www.julabo.com/com/support/rma">http://www.julabo.com/com/support/rma</a>.
- Ensure careful and adequate packing.
- JULABO cannot accept any liability for damage caused by incorrect packaging.
- In the interest of product improvement, JULABO reserves the right to make any necessary technical modifications during the repair to ensure the proper functioning of the unit.



## **19.1 Warranty**

JULABO warrants the proper functioning of the unit when connected and handled correctly and in accordance with the operating manual.

### The warranty period is

one year.

### Extension of warranty period – free of charge



With the '1PLUS warranty' the user receives a free of charge extension to the warranty of up to 24 months, limited to a maximum of 10 000 working hours.

To apply for this extended warranty the user must register the unit on the JULABO web site www.julabo.de, indicating the serial no. The extended warranty will apply from the date of JULABO GmbH's original invoice.

JULABO GmbH reserves the right to decide the validity of any warranty claim. In case of faults arising either due to faulty materials or workmanship, parts will be repaired or replaced free of charge, or a new replacement unit will be supplied.

Any other compensation claims are excluded from this guarantee.



## 20 Waste disposal

## 20.1 Packaging

Packaging materials must be disposed of as prescribed by the current local regulations.

## 20.2 Unit



In the European Economic Area (EEA) the disposal of waste equipment is regulated in the "Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)". The current official journal on this matter is available on the European Parliament's homepage.

The symbol for the separate collection of electrical and electronic equipment is a crossed-out trash can.

Disposal with household waste (unsorted waste) or similar collections of municipal waste is not permitted!

Contact an authorized waste disposal contractor in your country.

## 20.3 Refrigerant

Refrigerants must be disposed of as prescribed by the current local regulations.

They may only be disposed of by trained personnel.



## 21 EC conformity

EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufa	cturer:	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0
Hiermit erklären wir, We hereby declare, tha	dass das nachfolgend beze t the following product	sichnete Produkt
Produkt / Product:	Thermostat / Circulator	
Тур / туре:	CORIO CD	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.: siehe Typenschild / see type label
Sicherheits- und Ges due to the design and c	undheitsanforderungen de	von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden n nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. d marketed by our Company – compiles with fundamental safety and health
EMV-Richtlinie 20 RoHS-Richtlinie 2 Angewandte harm	14/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directiv nonisierte Normen und	2004/108/EC (bis zum / until 19. April 2016) 2014/30/EU (vom / from 20. April 2016) er 2011/65/EU techn. Spezifikationen: te following harmonized standards and technical specifications:
EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Dokumentation	zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektro	nnkgeråten hinsichtlich der Beschrähkung gefährlicher Stoffe onic products with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances
EN ISO 12100 : 20 Sicherheit von Maschinen - Safety of machinery - Gene		beurtellung und Riskominderung (ISO 12100.2010) Int and risk reduction (ISO 12100.2010)
EN 61010-1 : 2010 Sicherheitsbestimmungen fr	) ür elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- un	d Laborgerike, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen J. and laboratory uso, Part 1: General requirements
EN 61010-2-010 :		

EN 61010-2-010: 2014. Scherholtzsteamungen för elaktische Mass-, Steuer-, Rogel- und Laborgeräla, Teil 2-010: Besondere Anforderungen an Laborgerälas für das Erhitzen von Stoffen Safely requirements för elabraid equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements för elaboratory equipment for the healing of materials

#### EN 61326-1 : 2013

Elektrische Mess-, Steuer, Regel- und Laborgeräte- EMV-Anforderungen- Teil 1: Aligemeine Anforderungen Electrical equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use - EMC requirements - Part 1: General requirements

Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen: Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above

Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of

Seelbach, 03.03.2016

M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director

2016\_145\_CORIO\_CD\_Thermostat\_d\_e.docx

# .lulaha

#### EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A JULABO GmbH Hersteller / Manufacturer: (F Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0 Hiermit erklären wir, dass das nachfolgend bezeichnete Produkt We hereby declare, that the following product Produkt / Product: Kältegerät / Refrigeration Unit Typ / Type: 200F Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.: siehe Typenschild / see type label aufgrund seiner Konzipierung und Bauart in der von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden Sicherheits- und Gesundheitsanforderungen den nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. due to the design and construction, as assembled and marketed by our Company - complies with fundamental safety and health requirements according to the following EC-Directives. Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG; Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC EMV-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/30/EU RoHS-Richtlinie 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2011/65/EU Angewandte harmonisierte Normen und techn. Spezifikationen: The above-named product is in compliance with the following harmonized standards and technical specifications: EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Dokumentation zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektronikgeräten hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoffe Technisid documentation for the assessment of electrical and electronic products with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances EN ISO 12100 : 2010 Sicherheit von Maschinen - Allgemeine Gestaltungsleitsätze - Risikobeurteilung und Risikominderung (ISO 12100:2010) Safety of machinery - General principles for design - Risk assessment and risk reduction (ISO 12100:2010) EN 61010-1 : 2010 Sicherheitsbestimmungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen Safety requirements for electrical equiment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 1: General requirements EN 61010-2-010 : 2014 Schemeisbestemungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte, Teil 2-010: Besondere Anforderungen an Laborgeräte für das Erhitzen von Stoffen Safety requirements for eletrical equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements for laboratory equipment for the heating of EN 61326-1 : 2013 Elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte- EMV-Anforderungen- Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen Electrical equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use - EMC requirements - Part 1: General requirements EN 378-1 : 2016 an und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und Nationary of the service of the serv EN 378-2 : 2016 Else of a laboration of the second s second seco EN 378-3 : 2016 Käiteanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 3: Aufstellungsort und Schutz von Personen Refrigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 3: Installation site and personal protection EN 378-4 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärnepumpen – Sicherheistechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 4: Betrieb, Instandhellung, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung Refrigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 4: Operation, maintenance, repair and recovery Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen: Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of Seelbach, 23.10.2017 M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director 2017 146 200F-Kältegerät d e.docx

## EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG. Anhang II A

F

	cturer:	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0	(
Hiermit erklären wir, We hereby declare, tha	dass das nachfolgend bezeichne t the following product	ete Produkt	
Produkt / Product:	Kältegerät / Refrigeration Unit		
Тур / туре:	201F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.:	siehe Typenschild / see type lab
Maschinenrichtlin EMV-Richtlinie 20 RoHS-Richtlinie 2 Angewandte harr	to the following EC-Directives. nie 2006/42/EG; Machinery Dir 114/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/ 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 201 nonisierte Normen und tecl duct is in compliance with the fol	30/EU 11/65/EU	nnical specifications:
		iten hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoffe oducts with respect to the restriction of hazardous sub:	itances
Technische Dokumentation Technical documentation I EN ISO 12100 : 2 Sicherheit von Maschinen	or the assessment of electrical and electronic pro	oducts with respect to the restriction of hazardous subs	tances
Technische Dokumentation Technical documentation I EN ISO 12100 : 2 Sicherheit von Maschinen Safety of machinery - Gen EN 61010-1 : 201 Sicherheitsbestimmungen	or the assessment of electrical and electronic pro 010 - Allgemeine Gestaltungsleitsätze - Risikobeurte eral principles for design - Risk assessment and	oducts with respect to the restriction of hazardous sub ilung und Reikominderung (ISO 12100-2010) risk reduction (ISO 12100-2010) raeräte, Teil 1: Allaemeine Anforderungen	tances
Technische Dokum entation Technical documentation I EN ISO 12100 : 2 Sicherheit von Maschinen Safety of machinery - Gen EN 61010-1 : 201 Sicherheitsbestimmungen Safety requirements for eil EN 61010-2010 : Sicherheitsbestimmungen	or the assessment of electrical and electronic pro Child minimum Castaliungulatalizar - Riskobeutral principles for design - Risk assessment and Dir elektrische Mess., Steuer, Regel- und Labor Chief adultation for measurement, control, and 2014 (griedstrache Mess., Steuer, Regel- und Labor	oducts with respect to the restriction of hazardous sub ilung und Reikominderung (ISO 12100-2010) risk reduction (ISO 12100-2010) raeräte, Teil 1: Allaemeine Anforderungen	rgeräte für das Erhitzen von Stoffen
Technische Dokumentation Technical documentation 1 EN ISO 12100 : 2 Sicherheit von Maschinen Safer y Amachinery - Gen EN 61010-1 : 201 Sicherheitsbestimmungen Safer y requirements for ei materials EN 61326-1 : 201 Elektrische Mass., Steuer	or the assessment of detection and dectomic pro <b>010</b> Alignments Gastathungaleisitias – Risk absention principles for design - Risk assessment and Dir delastische Mass., Sieuer, Regel- und Labor delastische Mass., Sieuer, Regel- und Labor 2014 2014 Er delastische S., Steuer, Regel- und Labor für delastische S., Steuer, Regel- und Labor tirzel equipment for measurement, control, and	oducts with respect to the restriction of hazardous sub- lang und Relixonninderung (ISO 12100.2010) risk reduction (ISO 12100.2010) geräte, Teil 1: Aligemeine Anforderungen absorbatory use, Part 1: General requirements absorbatory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements for Teil 1: Aligemeine Anforderungen	rgeräte für das Erhitzen von Stoffen

Eliteariagen und Wärnepumpen – Scherheitstechnische und umwehrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und Auswahlthreiten Reiforgening systems and heat pumps - Safety and envirormental requirements - Part 1: Basics requirements, delinitions, classification and selection criteria

#### EN 378-2 : 2016

Julabo

Elin Grozz: 2010 Grz, 2010

#### EN 378-3 : 2016

Kälteanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 3: Aufstellungsort und Schutz von Personen Refrigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 3: Installation site and personal protection

EN 378-4 : 2016

Kältearlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 4: Betrieb, Instandhaltung, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung Reifigeration gystems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental neurirements - Part 4: Operation, maintenance, repair and recovery

#### Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen:

Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above

Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of

Seelbach, 23.10.2017

M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director

2017\_147\_201F-Kältegerät\_d\_e.docx

## EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufa	acturer:	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tei: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0
Hiermit erklären wir, We hereby declare, tha	dass das nachfolgend bezeich at the following product	
Produkt / Product:	Kältegerät / Refrigeration Un	sit
Typ / Type:	300F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.: siehe Typenschild / see type label
Sicherheits- und Ge due to the design and	sundheitsanforderungen den r	on uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. narketed by our Company – complies with fundamental safety and health
EMV-Richtlinie 2	nie 2006/42/EG; Machinery I 014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 20 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2	14/30/EU
	monisierte Normen und te	
The above-named pre	oduct is in compliance with the	following harmonized standards and technical specifications:
EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Dokumentation Technical documentation	n zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektronik for the assessment of electrical and electronie	geräten hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoffe products with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances
EN ISO 12100 : 2 Sicherheit von Maschinen Safety of machinery - Gen		urtellung und Riskominderung (ISO 12100:2010) and risk reduction (ISO 12100:2010)
EN 61010-1 : 201 Sicherheitsbestimmungen Safety requirements for el	für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und La	aborgerite, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen and laboratory use, Part 1: General requirements
EN 61010-2-010 Sicherheitsbestimmungen Safety requirements for el materials	: 2014 für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und La etrical equipment for measurement, control, ä	aborgeräte, Teil 2-010: Besondere Anforderungen an Laborgeräte für das Erhitzen von Stoffen and laboratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements for laboratory equipment for the heating of
EN 61326-1 : 201 Elektrische Mess-, Steuer Electrical equipment for m	3 -, Regel- und Laborgeräte- EMV-Anforderung leasurement, control, and laboratory use - EM	yen- Teil 1: Algemeine Anforderungen AC requirements - Part 1: General requirements
EN 378-1 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmer Auswahlkriterien	pumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umwelt	relevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und uirements - Part 1: Basics requirements, definitions, classification and selection criteria
EN 378-2 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmer Dokumentation	pumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umwelt	relevante Anforderungen – Teil 2: Konstruktion, Herstellung, Prüfung, Kennzeichnung und uirements - Part 2: Design, construction, testing, marking and documentation
EN 378-3 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärme	pumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umwelt	relevante Anforderungen – Teil 3: Aufstellungsort und Schutz von Personen uirements - Parl 3: Installation site and personal protection
EN 378-4 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmer Refrigerating systems and	pumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umwelt I heat pumps - Safety and environmental requ	relevante Anforderungen – Teil 4: Betrieb, instandhaltung, instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung uirements - Part 4: Operation, maintenance, repair and recovery
Authorized represent	r für die Zusammenstellun tative in charge of administering ke, im Hause / on the manufactu	
	serklärung wurde ausgest anformity was issued and valid	
Seelbach, 23.10.2	2017	M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director
2017_148_300F-Kälte	gerät_d_e.docx	



#### EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufa	cturer:	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany	Ce
		Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0	
Hiermit erklären wir, ( We hereby declare, that	dass das nachfolgend bezeichnet t the following product	e Produkt	
Produkt / Product:	Kältegerät / Refrigeration Unit		
Тур / <i>Тур</i> е:	600F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.:	siehe Typenschild / see type label

aufgrund seiner Konzipierung und Bauart in der von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden Sicherheits- und Gesundheitsanforderungen den nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. due to the design and construction, as assembled and marketed by our Company - complies with fundamental safety and health requirements according to the following EC-Directives.

Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG: Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC EMV-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/30/EU RoHS-Richtlinie 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2011/65/EU

Angewandte harmonisierte Normen und techn. Spezifikationen: The above-named product is in compliance with the following harmonized standards and technical specifications:

#### EN 50581 : 2012

Technische Dokumentation zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektronikgeräten hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoffe Technische dokumentation for the assessment of electrical and electronic products with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances

EN ISO 12100 : 2010

Scherheit von Maschinen - Allgemeine Gestaltungsleitsätze - Risikobeurteilung und Risikominderung (ISO 12100:2010) Safety of machinery - General principles for design - Risk assessment and risk reduction (ISO 12100:2010)

#### EN 61010-1 : 2010

Sicherheitsbestimmungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen Safety requirements for electrical equiment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 1: General requirements

#### EN 61010-2-010 : 2014

Scherheitsbestimmungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte, Teil 2-010: Besondere Anforderungen an Laborgeräte für das Erhitzen von Stoffen Safety requirements for eletrical equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements for laboratory equipment for the heating of

#### EN 61326-1 : 2013

Elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte- ENV-Anforderungen- Teil 1: Algemeine Anforderungen Electrical equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use - EMC requirements - Part 1: General requirements

#### EN 378-1 : 2016

pumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und

Kallsanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassfikation Auswahlikriterien Renfigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 1: Basics requirements, definitions, classification and selection criteria

Källbanlagen und Wärmegumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 2. Konstruktion, Herstellung, Prüfung, Kennzeichnung und Dekumeritation

Donumentation Refingerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 2: Design, construction, testing, marking and documentation

#### EN 378-3 : 2016

Refrigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 3: Installation site and personal protection

#### EN 378-4 : 2016

Kalteanlagen und Warmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltreievante Anforderungen – Teil 4: Betrieb, Instandhaltung, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung Refrigerating systems and heat pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 4: Operation, maintenance, repair and recovery

#### Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen:

Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above

### Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt

The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of

M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director

Seelbach, 23.10.2017

2017\_149\_600F-Kältegerät\_d\_e.docx



# EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufac	cturer:	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0	CE
Hiermit erklären wir, o We hereby declare, that	dass das nachfolgend bezeichnete the following product	Produkt	
Produkt / Product:	Kältegerät / Refrigeration Unit		
Typ / Type:	601F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.: si	iehe Typenschild / see type label
aufgrund seiner Konzipierung und Bauart in der von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden Sicherheits- und Gesundheitsanforderungen den nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. due to the design and construction, as assembled and marketed by our Company – complies with fundamental safety and health requirements according to the following EC-Directives.			
EMV-Richtlinie 20	Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG; Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC EMV-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/30/EU RoHS-Richtlinie 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2011/65/EU		
	nonisierte Normen und techn duct is in compliance with the follow	. Spezifikationen: ving harmonized standards and techni	ical specifications:
EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Doumentation zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektronikgaratien hinsichtlich der Beschräfkung gefährlicher Stoffe Technicie ducumentation for the assessment of electrical and electronic products with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances			
EN ISO 12100 : 2010 Sicherhet von Maschinen - Aligemeine Gestattungsleitsätze - Riskobeurteilung und Risklominderung (ISO 12100.2010) Safety of machinen - General grünzpies for design - Risk assessment and risk reduction (ISO 12100.2010)			
EN 61010-1 : 2010 Sicherheitsbestimmungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laboratory use, Part 1: Altgemeine Anforderungen Safetry requirements for electriche deutmant for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 1: General requirements			
EN 61010-2-010 : 2014. Scharhrabszeniumszyn for kalaszleh Mess. Stauer. Regel- und Laborgoritle, Teil 2-010. Basondere Anfordenungen en Laborgeritle für das Erhitzen von Stoffen Safety requirements for eletrical equipment for messurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 2-010. Particular requirements for laboratory equipment for the heating of materials			
EN 61326-1 : 2013 Elektrische Mess-Steuer. Regel- und Laborgeräte-EMV-Anforderungen- Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen Elektricai eleguisment for messurement, control, and laboratory use - EMC requirements - Part 1: General inquirements			
EN 378-1 : 2016 Kalitariangian und Viampourne – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und Ausweitshichtniche Reforgerating systems and heat pumps - Safely and environmental requirements - Part 1: Basics requirements, definitions, classification and selection orderia			
Dokumentation	EN 378-2 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 2: Konstruktion, Herstellung, Pröfung, Kernzeichnung und		
EN 378-3 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmepu			
EN 378-4 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmepu Refrigerating systems and h	EN 378-4 : 2016 Källeanilagen und Wärnispumpen – Sicherheitslechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 4. Betrieb, Instandhaitung, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung Refürgerating systems auch neut pumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 4. Operation, maintenance, repair and recovery		
Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen: Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above			

Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of

Seelbach, 03.11.2017

M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director

2017\_153\_601F-Kältegerät\_d\_e.docx



#### EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufacturer	ĸ	JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0)7823 / 51 - 0	CE
Hiermit erklären wir, dass We hereby declare, that the fo	das nachfolgend bezeichnete	e Produkt	
Produkt / Product: Kält	tegerät / Refrigeration Unit		
Тур / туре: 900	)F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.:	siehe Typenschild / see type label
aufgrund seiner Konzipierung und Bauart in der von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden Sicherheits- und Gesundheitsanforderungen den nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. due to the design and construction, as assembled and marketed by our Company – complies with fundamental safety and health requirements according to the following EC-Directives.			
Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG; Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC EMV-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/30/EU RoHS-Richtlinie 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2011/65/EU			
	sierte Normen und techn is in compliance with the follow	. Spezifikationen: wing harmonized standards and te	chnical specifications:
EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Dokumentation zur Beu Technical documentation for the ass	urteilung von Elektro- und Elektronikgeräten ssessment of electrical and electronic produ	hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoff cts with respect to the restriction of hazardous sul	a bstances
EN ISO 12100 : 2010 Sicherheit von Maschinen - Allgeme Safety of machinery - General princ	eine Gestaltungsleitsätze - Risikobeurteilun ciples for design - Risk assessment and risk	g und Risikominderung (ISO 12100:2010) reduction (ISO 12100:2010)	
EN 61010-1 : 2010 Sicherheitsbestimmungen für elektr Safety requirements for electrical ec	rische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborger quiment for measurement, control, and labo	äte, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen pratory use, Part 1: General requirements	
EN 61010-2-010 : 2014 Sicherheitsbestimmungen für elektr Safety requirements for eletrical equi materials	rische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgera	äte, Teil 2-010: Besondere Anforderungen an Lab pratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements fo	orgarate für das Erhitzen von Stoffen r laboratory equipment for the heating of
EN 61326-1 : 2013 Elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- u Electrical equipment for measureme	und Laborgeräte- EMV-Anforderungen- Teil ent, control, and laboratory use - EMC requi	I 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen irements - Part 1: General requirements	
Auswahlkriterien		te Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforde its - Part 1: Basics requirements, definitions, class	
EN 378-2 : 2016			
Dokumentation		te Anforderungen – Teil 2: Konstruktion, Herstellu ts - Part 2: Design, construction, testing, marking	
EN 378-3 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmepumpen -	- Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevant	te Anforderungen – Teil 3: Aufstellungsort und Sci its - Parl 3: Installation site and personal protectio	hutz von Personen
EN 378-4 : 2016 Kälteanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Refrigerating systems and heat pun	- Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevant mps - Safety and environmental requiremen	te Anforderungen – Teil 4: Betrieb, Instandhaltung its - Part 4: Operation, maintenance, repair and re	i, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung covery
Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen: Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above			
Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of			
		4	hulli
Soolbach 03 11 2017		/1.	Junion

Seelbach, 03.11.2017

M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director

2017\_154\_900F-Kältegerät\_d\_e.docx



#### EG-Konformitätserklärung nach EG Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG, Anhang II A EC-Declaration of Conformity to EC Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex II A

Hersteller / Manufacturer:		JULABO GmbH Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel: +49(0/7823 / 51 - 0	
Hiermit erklären wir, o We hereby declare, that	dass das nachfolgend bezeichnete the following product	e Produkt	
Produkt / Product:	Kältegerät / Refrigeration Unit		
Тур / туре:	1000F	Serien-Nr. / Serial-No.: siehe Typenschild / see type label	
aufgrund seiner Konzipierung und Bauart in der von uns in Verkehr gebrachten Ausführung den grundlegenden Sicherheits- und Gesundheitsanförderungen den nachfolgend aufgeführten EG-Richtlinien entspricht. due to the design and construction, as assembled and marketed by our Company – complies with fundamental safety and health requirements according to the following EC-Directives.			
Maschinenrichtlinie 2006/42/EG; Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC EMV-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU; EMC-Directive 2014/30/EU RoHS-Richtlinie 2011/65/EU; RoHS-Directive 2011/65/EU			
	nonisierte Normen und techn duct is in compliance with the follow	I. Spezifikationen: wing harmonized standards and technical specifications:	
EN 50581 : 2012 Technische Dokumentation Technical documentation fo	zur Beurteilung von Elektro- und Elektronikgeräter r the assessment of electrical and electronic produ	n hinsichtlich der Beschränkung gefährlicher Stoffe cts with respect to the restriction of hazardous substances	
EN ISO 12100 : 20 Sicherheit von Maschinen - Safety of machinery - Gene	)10 Allgemeine Gestaltungsleitsätze - Risikobeurteilun ral principles for design - Risk assessment and risk	g und Risikominderung (ISO 12100-2010) reduction (ISO 12100-2010)	
Sicherheitsbestimmungen fü	EN 61010-1 : 2010 Sicherheitbestimmungen für elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Regel- und Laborgeräte, Teil 1: Allgemeine Anforderungen Safelr gewährenste för elektrical equiment för messurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 1: General requirements		
EN 61010-2-2010 : 2014 Scharbrabababanovan for kelarischer Mers Steuer Regel- und Laborgeräte. Teil 2 010. Besondere Antorderungen an Laborgeräte for das Erhitzen von Stoffen Safety requirements for debroal equipment for measurement, control, and laboratory use, Part 2-010: Particular requirements for laboratory equipment for the healing of materials			
EN 61326-1 : 2013 Elektrische Mess-, Steuer-, Electrical equipment for me	EN 61326-1 : 2013 Elektrisch Mess, Stauer, Regel und Laborgeräte-EMV-Anforderungen-Teil : Algemeine Anforderungen Elektrosia eugunennet for messurement, control, and laboratory use -EWC requirements - Part 1: General requirements		
Auswahlkriterien	Kälteanlagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 1: Grundlegende Anforderungen, Begriffe, Klassifikationen und		
EN 378-2 : 2016 Killenningen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweitrelevante Anforderungen – Teil 2: Konstruktion, Herstellung, Prüfung, Kennzeichnung und Dekumertalion			
Reformation systems and heat jumps - Safety and environmental requirements - Part 2. Design, construction, testing, marking and documentation EN 378-3 : 2016 Kalawardspen und Vilamengungen - Sicherheitsbedreiste kund ummehrheitweiste Anforderungen - Teil 3. Aufstellungsst und Schatz von Personen Reforgeräng systems and heat gunna - Safety and endormentalte augumenters - Part 3. Takatalistic ein dersonal protection			
EN 378-4 : 2016 Kallanalagen und Wärmepumpen – Sicherheitstechnische und umweltrelevante Antorderungen – Teil 4. Betrieb, Instandhatung, Instandsetzung und Rückgewinnung Refütgeraling systemis auf het pungs - Safety auf einvironmental requirements - Parl 4. Operation, maintenance, repair auf recovery			
Bevollmächtigter für die Zusammenstellung der techn. Unterlagen: Authorized representative in charge of administering technical documentation: Hr. Torsten Kauschke, im Hause / on the manufacturer's premises as defined above			
0 Die Konformitätserklärung wurde ausgestellt The declaration of conformity was issued and valid of M. Multi-			
Seelbach, 03.11.20	017	M. Juchheim, Geschäftsführer / Managing Director	
2017_155_1000F-Kältegerät_d_e.docx			





### JULABO GmbH

Gerhard-Juchheim-Strasse 1 77960 Seelbach / Germany Tel. +49 (0) 7823 / 51-0 Fax +49 (0) 07823 / 2491 info.de@julabo.com www.julabo.com

Changes without prior notification reserved.

09.04.2018